



Title:Setting up Writer: Choosing options to suit the way you workVersion:1.0First edition:December 2004First EnglishDecember 2004

Contents

<u>Overview</u>
Copyright and trademark informationii
<u>Feedback</u> ii
Acknowledgmentsii
Modifications and updatesii
Choosing options that affect all of OOo1
User data1
General options
<u>View options</u>
Appearance options
Choosing options for text documents
General options for text documents
View options for text documents
Formatting aids options for text documents
Grid options for text documents
Default fonts for text documents
Print options for text documents
Default table options for text documents
Change tracking options for text documents
Choosing language settings
Install the required dictionaries
Choose the dictionaries and spelling options
Change the default language for documents
Controlling Writer's AutoCorrect functions

Overview

The Options dialog controls many settings in OpenOffice.org Writer. This chapter covers some of the setup options, particularly those that are a bit obscure or hard to find when you first start using the program. It does not cover all the options in detail. See the online help for full details.

Copyright and trademark information

The contents of this Documentation are subject to the Public Documentation License, Version 1.0 (the "License"); you may only use this Documentation if you comply with the terms of this License. A copy of the License is available at: <u>http://www.openoffice.org/licenses/PDL.rtf</u>.

The Original Documentation is "Setting up Writer: Choosing options to suit the way you work". The Initial Writer of the Original Documentation is Jean Hollis Weber © 2004. All Rights Reserved. (Initial Writer contacts: jeanweber@openoffice.org. Use the Initial Writer contacts to report errors in the documentation. For questions regarding how to use the software, subscribe to the Users Mail List and post your question there: http://support.openoffice.org/index.html.)

All trademarks within this guide belong to legitimate owners.

Feedback

Please direct any comments or suggestions about this document to: <u>authors@user-faq.openoffice.org.</u>

Acknowledgments

Much of this material was first published in *Taming OpenOffice.org Writer 1.1*, by Jean Hollis Weber, © 2003.

Modifications and updates

Version	Date	Description of Change
1.0	29 Dec 2004	First published edition.

Choosing options that affect all of OOo

This section covers some of the settings that apply to all the components of OOo and are particularly important when using Writer. Other general options are discussed in the chapter titled "Setting Up OpenOffice.org" in the Common Features Guide.

- 1) Click **Tools > Options**.
- 2) Click the + sign to the left of OpenOffice.org in the left-hand section. A list of subsections drops down.

User data

Because Writer's revision features mark your changes and comments with the name or initials stored in User Data, you'll want to ensure that your name and initials appear there. To do this:

- 1) In the Options dialog, click **OpenOffice.org > User Data**.
- 2) If anything on the User Data page (Figure 1) is incorrect, delete it and type the correct information.

∃ OpenOffice.org	Address				
User Data	Address	7			
General	<u>C</u> ompany				
Memory		1	1		
View	First/Last <u>n</u> ame/Initials	Jean Hollis	Webe	r	JHW
Print External Programs	Street	DO Day			
Paths	Street	PO Box xxx			
Colors	City/State/Zip	Anytown		State	0000
Fonts				1. Searce	1,000
Security	Country/Region	Australia			
Appearance					
Accessibility	<u>T</u> itle/Position				
∃ Load/Save	- 1 (4) (4) (5)	r			
∃ Language Settings	Tel. (Home/Wor <u>k</u>)				
∃ Internet	Fa <u>x</u> / E-mail		iea	n@taming-	openoffice-org.
∃ Text Document	raz r z man	1	hea	inecurinig	openomee org.
∃ HTML Document					
∃ Spreadsheet					
E Presentation					
∃ Drawing					
± Formula					
∃ Chart					
E Data Sources					

Figure 1. Filling in user data

Note: The Back button resets options to the values that were in place when you opened *OpenOffice.org*. This button has the same behavior on all the options dialogs.

General options

- 1) In the Options dialog, click **OpenOffice.org > General**.
- 2) On the Options OpenOffice.org General dialog (Figure 2), the options are as described below.

Options - OpenOffice.org	General			
 OpenOffice.org User Data General Memory View Print External Programs Paths Colors Fonts Security Appearance Accessibility Load/Save Language Settings Internet Text Document Spreadsheet Presentation Drawing Formula Chart Data Sources 	Year (two digits) Interpret as years between Help Agent ✓ Activate Display duration Help Agent OpenOffice.org Help formatting Style sheet Open/Save dialogs ✓ Use OpenOffice.org dialogs Document status ✓ Printing sets "document mode	30 ÷ secc <u>R</u> eset	2029	
	ОК	Cancel	<u>H</u> elp	Back

Figure 2. Setting general options for OpenOffice.org

Year (two digits)

Specifies how two-digit years are interpreted. For example, if the two-digit year is set to 1930, and you enter a date of 1/1/30 or later into your document, the date is interpreted as 1/1/1930 or later. An "earlier" date is interpreted as being in the following century; that is, 1/1/20 is interpreted as 1/1/2020.

Help Agent

To turn off the Help Agent (OpenOffice.org's equivalent to Microsoft's Office Assistant), deselect *Activate*. If the Help Agent is active, you can specify how long it remains open before it is automatically closed. To restore the default Help Agent behavior, click **Reset**.

Open/Save dialogs

To use the standard Open and Save dialogs for your operating system, deselect the *Use OpenOffice.org dialogs* checkbox. When this checkbox is selected, the Open and Save dialogs supplied with OpenOffice.org will be used. (See the "File Management" chapter in the Common Features Guide for more about the OOo Open and Save dialogs.)

Document status

Choose whether printing a document counts as changing the document. If this option is selected, then the next time you close the document after printing, the print date is recorded in the document properties as a change and you'll be prompted to save the document again, even if you didn't make any other changes.

View options

The choices of View options affect the way the document window looks and behaves.

- 1) In the Options dialog, click **OpenOffice.org** > View.
- 2) On the Options OpenOffice.org View dialog (Figure 3), set the options to suit your personal preferences. Some options are described below.

 OpenOffice.org User Data 	Display		Restore
General Memory Print External Programs Paths Colors Fonts Security Appearance Accessibility Load /Save Language Settings Internet Text Document FTML Document Fresentation Presentation Presentation Forwing Formula	Loo <u>k</u> & Feel Sc <u>a</u> le Icon <u>s</u> ize Elat buttons Menu follows Single line tab Colored tab c Preview in fon Inactive menu Font history Show icons in	i headings ontrols its lists i items	 Editing view Open windows 3D view Use OpenGL Ogtimized output Use dithering Object refresh during interaction Mouse Mouse positioning No automatic positioning Middle mouse button Automatic scrolling
⊞ Chart ⊞ Data Sources			

Figure 3. Choosing View options for the OpenOffice.org applications

Preview in fonts lists

When you select this option, the font list looks like Figure 4, left, with the font names shown as an example of the font; with the checkbox deselected, the font list shows only the font names, not their formatting (Figure 4, right). The fonts you will see listed are those that are installed on your system.

Inactive menu items

Select this option if you want inactive menu items to be visible but grayed out. Deselect it to prevent inactive menu items from appearing on the menus.

Immes New Roman Image: The second	Times New Roman 👻 10 💌 🖪
🔺 Arial 📃	Arial
A Arial Alternative !2CTev	Arial Alternative
🗚 Arial Alternative Symbol 🗌 🗖 🖉 📲 🗖	Arial Alternative Symbol Arial Black
A Arial Black	Arial Narrow
	Arial Narrow Special G1
🗚 Arial Narrow	Arial Narrow Special G2
🗚 Arial Narrow Special G1 12CT evag 🔹	Arial Rounded MT Bold

Figure 4. (Left) Font list showing preview; (Right) Font list without preview

Font history

When you select this option, the last five fonts you have assigned to the current document are displayed at the top of the font list.

Restore – Editing view

Select this option if you want to open documents at the place the cursor was located when you previously closed the document. Deselect this option to always open documents at the first page.

Appearance options

Writing, editing, and page layout are often easier to do when you can see as much as possible of what's going on in your document. For example, you need to know if any tables or graphics are too wide and intrude into the margins of the page.

On the Options – OpenOffice.org – Appearance dialog (Figure 5), you can specify which items are visible and the colors used to display various items.

- 1) In the Options dialog, click **OpenOffice.org > Appearance**.
- 2) To show or hide items such as text boundaries, select or deselect the checkboxes next to the names of the items.

To change the default colors for items, click the down-arrow in the Color Setting column by the name of the item and select a color from the pop-up box.

3) To save your color changes as a color scheme, type a name in the *Scheme* box and click **Save**.

OpenOffice.org User Data	Color scheme	
General Memory	<u>S</u> cheme Default	Saye
View Print	Custom colors	
External Programs	On User interface elements	Color setting Preview
Paths	General	× .
Colors Fonts Security	Document background	Automatic
Appearance Accessibility	Text boundaries	Automatic
⊞ Load/Save ⊞ Language Settings	Application background	Automatic 💌
🗄 Internet	Object boundaries	Automatic 💌
 	▼ Table boundaries	Automatic 🗾
 	Font color	Automatic
⊞ Drawing ⊞ Formula	Unvisited links	Automatic 💌
⊞ Chart ⊞ Data Sources		

Figure 5. Showing or hiding text, object, and table boundaries

Choosing options for text documents

Settings chosen on the dialogs in the Text Document section of the Options dialog determine how your text documents look and behave while you are working on them.

- 1) If the Options dialog is not already open, click **Tools > Options**.
- 2) Click the + sign to the left of Text Document in the left-hand section. A list of subsections drops down.

General options for text documents

The choices on the Options – Text Document – General dialog affect the updating of links and fields, the units used for rulers and other measurements, whether captions are automatically added to selected objects such as tables or figures, paragraph spacing, and tab stop behavior.

- 1) Choose **Text Document > General** on the Options dialog (Figure 6).
- 2) Keep in mind the following considerations when selecting options on this dialog.

Update links when loading

Depending on your work patterns, you may not want links to be updated when you load a document. For example, if your file links to other files on a network, you won't want those links to update when you are not connected to the network.

Options - Text Document - G	eneral		
OpenOffice.org Load/Save Language Settings Internet Text Document General View Formatting Aids Grid	Update Update links when loading C <u>A</u> lways C <u>O</u> n request C <u>N</u> ever	Automatically I <u>Eields</u> I <u>C</u> harts	
Basic Fonts (Western) Basic Fonts (Asian) Basic Fonts (CTL) Print	Caption Auto <u>m</u> atic Settings	Object se	lection:
Table Changes ⊞ HTML Document	Measurement <u>u</u> nit Centimeter	▼ <u>T</u> ab stops	0.64cm
 Spreadsheet Presentation Drawing Formula Chart Data Sources 	 Comparison of the second second	tables (in current documer ops of pages (in current doc	- 1 (c)
<	ОК	Cancel <u>H</u> elp	Back

Figure 6. Choosing general options for text documents

Update fields and charts automatically

You may not want fields or charts to update automatically when you are working because that slows down performance.

Compatibility

Do you want your Writer documents to be compatible with Microsoft Word? If so, you may want to select some or all of these settings.

Note: Unlike some other options, the compatibility settings are valid only for the current document and thus must be defined separately for each document.

Settings – Tab stops

The Tab stop setting is also used for the indent distance applied by the **Increase Indent** and **Decrease Indent** icons on the Object Bar.

Captions

Do you want OOo to automatically insert captions for tables, graphics, frames, and OLE objects that have been inserted in a text document? You may not always want captions for every table, for example, if you use tables for layout as well as for tables of data. You can always add captions to individual tables, graphics, or other objects.

If you do want automatic captions on one or more object types:

- a) Select Caption Automatic, then click the **Object Selection** button.
- b) On the Caption dialog (Figure 7), choose which objects will be automatically captioned, and specify the characteristics of the captions. If the term you want for the caption label is not in the drop-down Category list, type the required term in the box; you are not limited to the supplied categories. In the example shown, I have added the category "Figure" to the list.
- c) Click OK to return to the Options dialog.

OpenOffice.org Writer Table	Settings		ок
OpenOffice.org Writer Frame	<u>C</u> ategory	Figure	
OpenOffice.org Writer Graphics OpenOffice.org 1.1.4 Spreadsheet	Numbering	Arabic (1 2 3) 💌	Cancel
OpenOffice.org 1.1.4 Chart OpenOffice.org 1.1.4 Drawing	Caption		<u>H</u> elp
OpenOffice.org 1.1.4 Presentation OpenOffice.org 1.1.4 Formula	Po <u>s</u> ition	Below]
Further OLE objects	Level	None]
	Sepa <u>r</u> ator		

Figure 7. Choosing settings for automatic captions on graphics

View options for text documents

Two dialogs of options set the defaults for viewing text documents: View and Formatting Aids (described on page 9).

- 1) Choose **Text Document > View** on the Options dialog (Figure 8).
- 2) If the items on this dialog are not self-explanatory, you can easily test their effect in a blank document.

This is a good dialog to check if, for example, you can't see graphics on the screen, or you see field codes instead of the text or numbers you are expecting.

Figure 8, Choosing view options for text documents

Formatting aids options for text documents

The display of symbols such as paragraph ends and tabs help you when writing, editing, and doing page layout. For example, you might want to know if any blank paragraphs or tabs are included, or if any tables or graphics are too wide and intrude into the margins of the page.

On the Options – Text Document – Formatting Aids dialog (Figure 9), select the required checkboxes.

Options - Text Document - F	ormatting Aids		×
 □ OpenOffice.org □ Load/Save □ Language Settings □ Internet □ Text Document □ General □ View □ Formatting Aids □ Grid □ Basic Fonts (Western) □ Basic Fonts (Asian) □ Basic Fonts (CTL) □ Print □ Table □ Changes □ HTML Document □ Spreadsheet □ Presentation □ Drawing □ Formula □ Chart □ Data Sources 	Display of Paragraph end Custom hyphens Spaces Non-breaking spaces Tabs Breaks Hidden text Hidden paragraphs	Direct cursor	

Figure 9. Choosing formatting aid options for text documents

Tip: Direct cursor enables you to enter text at any position within the type area in your text document. This feature is incompatible with rigorous use of styles and can lead to many formatting oddities, so it should be avoided by professional writers.

Grid options for text documents

Specifying "snap to grid" can be very helpful when you are trying to align several objects such as graphics or tables. If the grid intervals (subdivisions) are too large, you may find that you don't have enough control in placing the objects.

On the Options – Text Document – Grid dialog (Figure 10), you can choose whether to enable this feature, and what grid intervals to use.

Options - Text Document - C	irid	X
 □ OpenOffice.org □ Load/Save □ Language Settings □ Internet □ Text Document □ General □ View □ Formatting Aids □ Grid □ Basic Fonts (Western) □ Basic Fonts (CTL) □ Print □ Table □ Changes □ HTML Document □ Spreadsheet □ Presentation □ Drawing □ Formula □ Chart □ Data Sources 	Grid Sible grid Resolution Hgrizontal 1.00cm Vertical 1.00cm Vertical 1.00cm Vertical 1.00cm Vertical 1.00cm Vertical 1.00cm Vertical 1.00cm Vertical 1.00cm Vertical 1.00cm Vertical 1.00cm Vertical 1.00cm Vertical 1.00cm Vertical 1.00cm Vertical 1.00cm Vertical Vertical Vertical Vertical Vertical Vertical Vertical Vertical Vertical Vertical	
	OK Cancel <u>H</u> elp <u>B</u> ack	

Figure 10. Choosing grid options for text documents

Default fonts for text documents

The default fonts specified on the Basic Fonts dialog apply to both text documents and HTML (Web) documents.

- If you want to change the defaults, do so on the Options Text Document Basic Fonts dialog (Figure 11). You can, of course, choose other fonts for use in specific documents, either by applying direct formatting or by defining and applying styles in those documents.
- 2) When choosing fonts in this dialog, you are not limited to single fonts or to the ones shown in the drop-down list. You can specify a "font family"—a set of fonts that includes those suitable for Windows, Macintosh, Linux, and other operating systems. These choices are particularly important in HTML documents.

If the document is viewed on a system that does not have the first font specified, it will use one of the other fonts if that one is available. Otherwise, it will substitute a font that is available on the system.

3) Type the list of fonts, separated by commas, in the boxes. If you want these defaults to apply to the current document only, select that checkbox. The Default button at the bottom of the dialog (not shown) resets the values on this dialog to the defaults installed with OpenOffice.org.

⊕ OpenOffice.org ⊡ Load/Save	Basic fonts (Wester	n)		
⊞ – Language Settings ⊞ – Internet	De <u>f</u> ault	Arial, Helvetica, sans serif	•	
Text Document General	Headin <u>g</u>	Arial, Helvetica, sans serif	•	
View Formatting Aids	List	Times New Roman, Times, serif	•	
- Grid Basic Fonts (Western) Basis Fonts (Asian)	C <u>a</u> ption	Times New Roman, Times, serif	•	
Basic Fonts (Asian) Basic Fonts (CTL) Print	<u>I</u> ndex	Times New Roman, Times, serif	•	
	C <u>u</u> rrent docu	iment only		
HTML Document				
E Spreadsheet				
 Presentation Drawing 				
🗄 Formula				
🗄 Chart				
Data Sources				Default
		OK Cancel	Help	Back

Figure 11. Choosing default fonts for text documents

Print options for text documents

On the Options – Text Document – Print dialog (Figure 12), you can choose which items are printed with the document by default.

Some considerations:

- When you are working on drafts, and you want to save printer ink or toner, you might want to deselect some of the items in the Contents section.
- The Print black selection causes color text (but not graphics) to print as black on a color printer; on a black-and-white printer, this option causes color text to print as solid black instead of shades of gray (dithered).

Contrast with *Convert colors to grayscale* on the Options – OpenOffice.org – Print dialog, which prints all graphics as grayscale on color printers. (On black-and-white printers, color in graphics normally prints as grayscale.)

- If you're printing double-sided on a non-duplexing printer, you might choose to print only left or right pages, then turn the stack over and print the other pages.
- Depending on how your printer ejects pages (face up or face down), you might need to print the pages in reverse order so they stack in the correct order as they are printed.

Tip: You can override any of these defaults when printing a document. Click File > Print, then click the Options button on the Print dialog to display the dialog in Figure 1-19.

⊕ OpenOffice.org ⊕ Load/Save	Contents	Pages	Notes
Loadysave Language Settings Internet Text Document General View Formatting Aids Grid Basic Fonts (Western) Basic Fonts (CTL) Frint Table Changes	 ✓ <u>G</u>raphics ✓ <u>T</u>ables ✓ Drawings ✓ Controls ✓ Background ✓ Print black Other ✓ Create single pr 	✓ Left pages ✓ Right pages ✓ Reversed ✓ Brochure	 None Notes <u>o</u>nly End of docu<u>m</u>ent End of page
 HTML Document Spreadsheet Presentation Drawing Formula Chart Data Sources 	Eaper tray from	printer settings <none> OK Cancel</none>	

Figure 12. Choosing print options for text documents

Default table options for text documents

On the Options – Text Document – Table dialog (Figure 13), you can specify the default table behavior.

Some considerations:

- If most of your tables will require borders or headings, select those checkboxes; most of my tables are used for page layout, so I don't use either borders or headings.
- *Number recognition* can be very useful if most of your tables contain numerical data; Writer will recognize dates or currency, for example, and format the numbers appropriately. However, in many cases you want the numbers to remain as ordinary text, so this feature can be quite irritating. I generally deselect it.
- The *Keyboard handling* section specifies the distances cells will move when you use keyboard shortcuts to move them, and the size of rows and columns inserted using keyboard shortcuts.
- The choices in the *Behavior of rows/columns* section determine the effects that changes to rows or columns have on adjacent rows or columns and the entire table. You may need to test these selections to fully understand the effects.

Options - Text Document - T	able			<u> </u>
 □ OpenOffice.org □ Load/Save □ Language Settings □ Internet □ Text Document □ General − View □ Formatting Aids □ Grid 	Default Heading Repeat on eac Do not split Border	h page	Input in tables	
Basic Fonts (Western) Basic Fonts (Asian) Basic Fonts (CTL) Print Table	Keyboard handling — Move cells <u>R</u> ow Column	0.50cm ÷	Insert cell Ro <u>w</u> Colu <u>m</u> n	0.50cm 🔹
Changes HTML Document Spreadsheet Presentation Drawing Formula Chart Data Sources	Behavior of rows/col C <u>F</u> ixed C Fi <u>x</u> ed, proport C <u>V</u> ariable	umns Changes affe tional Changes affe	ect the adjacent area only act the entire table act the table size	
		ОК Са	ncel <u>H</u> elp	Back

Figure 13. Choosing default table options for text documents

Change tracking options for text documents

If you plan to use the change-tracking feature of Writer, use the Options – Text Document – Changes dialog (Figure 14) to choose the way inserted and deleted material is marked, whether and how attribute changes are marked, and whether and how change bars are marked in the margins.

Options - Text Document - C	hanges	×
 DpenOffice.org Load/Save Language Settings Internet Text Document General View 	Text display Insertions <u>A</u> ttributes Co <u>l</u> or	Underlined Insert
Formatting Aids Grid Basic Fonts (Western) Basic Fonts (Asian) Basic Fonts (CTL)	Deletions Attrib <u>u</u> tes C <u>o</u> lor	Strikethrough
Print Table Changes ⊞ HTML Document ⊞ Spreadsheet ⊞ Presentation	Changed attributes Att <u>r</u> ibutes <u>C</u> olor	Bold By author Attributes
 Drawing Formula Chart Data Sources 	Lines changed ———— Mar <u>k</u> <u>C</u> olor	Left margin 💌 📕
		DK Cancel <u>H</u> elp <u>B</u> ack

Figure 14. Choosing options for tracking changes in text documents

Choosing language settings

You may need to do several things to set the language settings to what you want:

- Install the required dictionaries
- Choose the dictionaries and spelling options
- Change the default language for documents
- Set the version of English to be checked

Install the required dictionaries

OpenOffice.org 1.1.x automatically installs several dictionaries with the program. To add other dictionaries, you can use the AutoPilot (not available in versions of OOo before 1.1.1) or install them manually.

Using the AutoPilot

- Click File > AutoPilot > Install new dictionaries. OOo opens a file (DicOOo.sxw) containing instructions in several languages and macro buttons to start the download and installation process. (The available dictionaries are for many more languages than those used in the instructions.)
- Click the macro button and follow the instructions in the wizard to download a list of available dictionaries, select the ones you want, and download and install them. This process proceeds automatically.

Installing a dictionary manually

See <u>http://lingucomponent.openoffice.org/</u> for instructions and dictionaries.

Choose the dictionaries and spelling options

After installing the dictionaries (either automatically or manually), you need to register them with OOo:

- 1) Start OOo (if it's not already running) and click **Tools > Options**.
- 2) Expand Language Settings and choose Writing Aids (Figure 15).
- 3) Make sure **OpenOffice MySpell SpellChecker** under *Available language modules* is selected, then click the **Edit** button at the top right of the dialog.

Options - Language Settings	- Writing Aids	
 OpenOffice.org Load/Save Language Settings Languages Writing Aids Searching in Japanese Asian Layout Complex Text Layout 	Writing aids Available language modules OpenOffice.org MySpell SpellChecker ALTLinux LibHnj Hyphenator OpenOffice.org Thesaurus User-defined dictionaries	Edit
 Internet Text Document HTML Document 	- Soffice (All) ▼ sun [All]	<u>N</u> ew
 	IgnoreAllList [All] ✓ IgnoreAllList [All] ✓ standard [All]	<u>E</u> dit
 Entropy of the second seco		Delete
⊞ - Chart ⊞ - Data Sources	Options	
	Check uppercase words Check words with numbers Check capitalization Check special regions Check in all languages	Egit
· ·	OK Cancel <u>H</u> elp	Back

Figure 15. Choosing languages, dictionaries, and options for checking spelling

4) In the Edit Modules dialog (Figure 16), select the language from the list at the top, then select OpenOffice MySpell SpellChecker under Spelling. Click **Close**.

it Modules			
ptions Language	🗤 English (USA)		Close
Spelling		Move Up	<u>H</u> elp
Hyphenation ALTLinux LibHr	i MySpell SpellChecker nj Hyphenator	Move Down	
Thesaurus	Thesaurus	Back	

Figure 16. Registering a new dictionary

- 5) Back on the Writing Aids dialog (Figure 15), choose the settings that are useful for you. Some considerations:
 - If you don't want spelling checked while you type, select *Do not mark errors* and deselect *AutoCheck*. (To find these items, scroll down in the Options list.)
 - If you use a custom dictionary that includes words in all uppercase and words with numbers (for example, AS/400), select *Check uppercase words* and *Check words* with numbers.

- *Check special regions* includes headers, footers, frames, and tables when checking spelling. If this checkbox is not selected, text in those parts of the document are not checked for spelling.
- On this dialog you can also select which user-defined (custom) dictionaries are active by default, and add or remove dictionaries, by clicking the **New** or **Delete** buttons.

Change the default language for documents

- 1) Choose Languages under *Language Settings* on the left-hand side of the Options dialog.
- 2) On the right-hand side (as shown in Figure 17), change the Locale setting, Default currency, and Default languages for documents. In the example, English (Australia) has been chosen as the locale, and the Australian dollar (AUD) for the currency. Although an English (Australia) dictionary exists, the English (UK) dictionary has been selected as the default language.
- 3) If you want the language (dictionary) setting to apply to the current document only, instead of being the default for all new documents, select the checkbox labelled *For the current document only*.
- 4) If necessary, select the checkboxes to enable support for Asian languages (Chinese, Japanese, Korean) and support for CTL (complex text layout) languages such as Hindi, Thai, Hebrew, and Arabic. If you choose either of these checkboxes, the next time you open this dialog, you will see some extra dialogs under Language Settings.

Options - Language Settings OpenOffice.org Load/Save	Language of		
Language Settings Languages	Locale setting	Default	•
Writing Aids Searching in Japanese	Default currency	Default	•
Asian Layout	Default languages for documents		
Complex Text Layout	<u>W</u> estern	Figlish (USA)	•
 	<u>A</u> sian	[None]	•
 	CIL	[None]	•
⊞ Drawing ⊞ Formula		Eor the current document	t only
⊞ – Chart ⊞ – Data Sources	Asian languages support ── ✓ Enabled Complex text layout (CTL) support ── ✓ E <u>n</u> abled		
<u> </u>	ОК	Cancel <u>H</u> elp	Back

Figure 17. Choosing language options

Controlling Writer's AutoCorrect functions

You may find that some or all of the items in Writer's AutoCorrect feature are very annoying because what you type will often change when you don't want it to. Many people find some of the AutoCorrect functions quite helpful; if you do, then select the relevant checkboxes. But if you find unexplained changes appearing in your document, this is a good place to look to find the cause.

To open the AutoCorrect dialog, click **Tools > AutoCorrect/AutoFormat**.

In Writer, this dialog has five tabs, as shown in Figure 18.

AutoCorrect
Replacements and exceptions for language: English (Australia)
Replace Exceptions Options Custom Quotes Word Completion
[M] [T]
 Use replacement table Correct TWo INitial CApitals Capitalize first letter of every sentence Automatic "bold" and _underline_ URL Recognition Replace 1st with 1^st Replace 1/2 with ½ Replace dashes Delete spaces and tabs at beginning and end of paragraph Delete spaces and tabs at end and start of line Ignore double spaces Apply numbering - symbol: * Apply border Create table Apply Styles Remove blank paragraphs Replace Custom Styles
Edit [M]: Replace while modifying existing text [T]: AutoFormat/AutoCorrect while typing
OK Cancel <u>H</u> elp <u>R</u> eset

Figure 18. The AutoCorrect dialog in Writer, showing the five tabs and some of the choices on the Options tab